
Minutes of the regularly scheduled meetng of the Saltville Town Council held on December 9, 
2014 at 7:00 p.m. in the Town Hall

Council: Terry Hunt, Sandra Wyat, Eugene Call, David Smith, Randall Brickey, 
and Ron Orr

Mayor: C. Todd Young

Staf: T. Michael Taylor, Town Manager
Trent Crewe, Town Atorney
Erik Pucket, Actng Police Chief
R.B. Henderson, Public Works Director
Steve Johnson, Clerk/Treasurer
Tammy Carter, Front Ofce Clerk

Councilman Orr asked that a correcton be made concerning the discussion of the Conservators 
of the Peace on page 8 of the minutes of November 11, 2014.  In response to Councilman 
Brickey statng the town paid for the training, Councilman Orr had followed that by statng the 
town paid for the registraton and not the training.  That partcular vote to pay for the 
registraton was approved by the Council at the July Council meetng.  Councilman Brickey 
made the moton to approve the November 11th minutes with that correcton and Councilman 
Smith seconded.  All were in favor.

Before discussing the minutes of October 14, 2014, Mayor Young asked Town Atorney Trent 
Crewe if the minutes of a meetng had to be word-for-word.  Mr. Crewe said no since the 
minutes are not a transcript but a summary.  They can be very general as long as they address 
the topics that were discussed and any actons taken.  

Councilman Brickey said that he was not clear on page 9 of the October 14th minutes.  He stated
that he made a moton to remove the streetlights that had been turned in and didn’t receive a 
second.  Other than that, he didn’t have a problem with the minutes.  Clerk/Treasurer Steve 
Johnson said that both he and Front Ofce Clerk Tammy Carter went back and listened to the 
recording and there was never a moton made during the streetlight discussion.  Councilman 
Smith made a moton to approve the October 14th minutes and Councilman Orr seconded.  The 
moton carried 5-1 with Councilman Brickey votng no.

Citzens’ Time

Scot Venable said he had been biten twice by dogs while walking on the Salt Trail, once near 
the house of Kyle Sword and once near the medical center.  Councilman Brickey asked about an 

1



animal ordinance and the Mayor said he thought there was a fne involved and the issue would 
have to go to court.  Actng Chief Erik Pucket said that when dog bites are reported, Animal 
Control is called and makes the charges and then contacts the health department.  Mr. Venable 
asked if something could be posted on the Trail.

Approval of the Agenda

Councilman Hunt made a moton to add a discussion of Erik Pucket and Councilman Brickey 
seconded.  All were in favor.

Councilman Brickey made a moton to add a discussion of the issue that Mr. Venable brought 
up and Councilman Smith seconded.  All were in favor.

Councilman Call made a moton to add a discussion of the Elizabeth Cemetery and Councilman 
Hunt seconded.  All were in favor.  

Afer these additons, Councilman Brickey made a moton to approve the agenda and 
Councilman Smith seconded.  All were in favor.

New Business

1. Lane Group report

Mathew Lane discussed the following:

1)  Work is contnuing with the town staf regarding the drainage on Allison Gap Road and the 
property owner that will be most directly afected by any work is being contacted.  Once this is 
done, the notfcaton will be sent to the paper for publicaton.

2)  The contract for the sewer system I&I work was recently given to the Council and once it is 
approved, the work will contnue.

3)  The maintenance building repairs have been designed and the repairs will be made by the 
town staf.

2



4)  Councilman Brickey asked if the Allison Gap Road improvements had been put out to bid like
the Council voted to do.  The Mayor said the drawings would have to be completed frst and 
then Lane would actually put it out for bid and bring the bids back to the Council.

5)  Mayor Young asked about the Salt Trail and Mr. Lane told him that any trail modifcatons 
would be costly, especially if they are to be ADA compliant.  It might help to meet with 
interested partes and develop a plan for this.

2. Veolia report

Zach Maynard spoke on the following:

1)  The required monthly sampling was completed.

2)  The drain screens were checked on all statons and well sites.

3)  The UV lights at the plant were cleaned and an efuent pump was installed.

4)  Various leaks were fxed.

5)  Tifany Wilson of the Health Department inspected the water system and found no major 
issues.

3. Street light

Councilman Call said he was approached by Jay Miller inquiring about getng a light placed on a
pole near his house since it was really dark.  Mr. Johnson said he and Mr. Taylor would look into 
this and said he would get the pole number to see if it was a viable pole upon which to place a 
light.  Councilman Brickey said that David Buchanan had requested a light be placed on a pole 
near his house and the Council had voted not to do it.  There is a light located at 949 Palmer 
Avenue not really serving any purpose and Councilman Brickey suggested that it be moved to 
Mr. Buchanan’s house.  Councilman Brickey asked which commitee handled this and Mr. Taylor
told him not one in partcular.  The Mayor then suggested it should probably be the Streets & 
Roads Commitee.  Councilman Brickey then made a moton to send these two items to the 
commitee and bring the recommendaton back to the Council.  Councilman Call seconded and 
all were in favor.

4. Erik Pucket

Councilman Hunt said the former Police Chief had been gone for several months and quite a bit 
of overtme is being paid.  Right now, the department is running prety smoothly with Erik 

3



Pucket as the Actng Chief; if it is not broken, then don’t fx it.  He then made the moton for 
Mr. Pucket to become the Chief efectve January 1, 2015 and for that term to end on June 30, 
2016.  At that tme, if the positon is flled, he can revert back to being the Assistant Chief.  He 
would also like for Mr. Pucket to receive the same salary that Chief Hall did.  

The Mayor said there are certain procedures that need to be followed.  There’s a commitee 
involved and interviews have already been set up.  Mr. Pucket did not apply for the Chief’s 
positon so he said he did not understand the reasoning.  Mr. Crewe said a positon was 
advertsed and the process to hire a new Chief has been set in moton and has not been 
completed.  Since Mr. Pucket has not applied for the positon, he is not currently part of the 
process that had deadlines as part of the process.  Other candidates have been informed of this 
process, so it has to stay its course.  There may be some legal consequences to changing the 
rules afer the game has started.  Mr. Pucket cannot come in now unless the process is started 
over.  Councilman Brickey said it was his understanding the town could hire and fre whoever it 
wanted.  Mr. Crewe replied yes, but the process used has to remain the same.  Councilman 
Brickey then asked which law says this and Mr. Crewe stated the Equal Opportunity Employer 
regulatons and federal labor laws.  In his opinion the clearest violaton is that a deadline was 
set and Mr. Pucket did not turn in his applicaton before that deadline.  If the town would now 
circumvent that process, the town could be liable to the other applicants.  

Councilman Brickey said he had seen the paperwork the applicants had sent in and none had an
applicaton.  Mr. Crewe disagreed and stated that he had seen applicatons.   They may not say 
the word applicaton at the top of the page, but they are resumes submited in response to the 
request for a resume or informaton about the applicants.  It is a form of semantcs but, to Mr. 
Crewe’s recollecton, the ad did not say to fll out a form.  It just said to apply.  Councilwoman 
Wyat said she recalled seeing one or two that had actually flled out an applicaton and she 
thought that she would never fll out an applicaton herself since it had too many questons.  
The Mayor then said the meetng would move on, and Mr. Crewe said that was his call.

5. Dog issues on the Salt Trail

Councilman Brickey suggested sending this to the Ordinance Commitee and have their 
members make a recommendaton back to the Council since this could be a liability issue for 
the town.  He put that in the form of a moton and Councilman Smith seconded.  Councilman 
Orr asked Mr. Venable if the dogs were with someone or running loose, and Mr. Venable replied
they were with somebody.  The issue stll needs to be looked into, though.  The moton carried 
unanimously.

6. Elizabeth Cemetery

Councilman Call asked about the money paid last year for opening and closing graves and how 
it worked between the town and the funeral home.  Mr. Johnson said that most of the tme the 

4



money is collected at the funeral home and a couple of tmes a year, the funeral home sends 
the town a check.  Councilman Call asked if the town sends the funeral home a bill.  Mr. 
Johnson said that when most people come in to the Town Hall to pay for plots, which are $850, 
or to pay for the opening/closing, which is $600, they can’t aford to pay it all at once, so the 
town lets them make payments monthly.  Since some can only pay about $25 - $50 per month, 
it takes a while for their bill to get fully paid.  Additonally, most people don’t have the burial 
insurance that would cover these costs, plus dealing with this issue is a delicate situaton.  

Councilman Call then said the former Police Chief used to keep up with the cemetery, and Mr. 
Johnson replied that it has become a group efort involving the front ofce staf of Tammy and 
Shirley.  Erik Pucket helps with the cemetery quite a bit as well.  

Old Business

1. Christmas contest

Councilman Smith said there were six winners in the contest.  Each winner will receive a big 
Christmas dinner on December 22nd.  Four of the winners rode in the parade as a guest of Santa
Claus.    

2. Personnel Policy

Councilman Brickey said he would like to see the town’s hiring procedure for its employees 
since it seems like when someone new is hired, it’s done a diferent way each tme.  He wants to
see this procedure for the past fve years for every department.  He asked Mr. Johnson if he had
a copy of this since, by the Town Code, he was responsible for having these records.  Mr. 
Johnson said it would be in the Town Code or Personnel Policy itself.  The Mayor suggested 
having Councilman Brickey meet with Mr. Johnson to get this.  Councilman Brickey said this was
on the agenda, and Mr. Johnson should be able to produce it if it is asked for.  He then made a 
moton that the Town Clerk produce these records by the end of the week.  Councilman Hunt 
seconded and all were in favor.

3. Town Shop

Councilman Brickey said the town’s maintenance employees were moved from the old shop 
into the GCS building a couple of years ago.  During that tme, a lady was at a Council meetng 
who had some photos of the building and recommended nobody go back in it at that tme.  He 
would like to see copies of those photos.  He then asked why the town allowed salt to be stored 
there against her recommendatons.   Public Works Director R.B. Henderson said he did not 

5



know where else it could go.  Councilman Brickey said he made the moton to have the 
employees and operatons down to the GCS building when Jacky Colston was stll with the 
town.  Mr. Colston told him that everything would be moved.  Mr. Henderson then reiterated 
that this was the only place to store the salt.  Councilman Call asked if the building was safe, 
especially since there was yellow tape all around it, and Councilman Brickey said the 
recommendaton was made to not use it.

The Mayor then stated that the Lane Group had sized the beam to repair the salt bay, so we’re 
beatng on a dead horse.  These people work for us, and if you have a queston to ask them, 
don’t belitle them at a Council meetng.  Councilman Call said he just wanted to know if it was 
safe.  Mr. Lane said it was the bay which was damaged, but they didn’t think the ofces should 
be occupied.  Councilman Call then asked that if it was not safe to walk through, then why 
would the salt be stored there.  The Mayor then asked Mr. Lane if the bay was safe.  Mr. Lane 
said that when the improvements are made, it would be safe enough to store the salt.  He 
contnued and said it was his opinion that the parts of the building where the ofces were 
located should not be occupied.  A long-term soluton needs to be found, though.  

Town Manager’s Report

Mr. Taylor spoke on the following:

1)  The Christmas parade was a success; most towns in both countes were represented, 
including the police, fre, and rescue departments.

2)  The Mayor has met with the legislatve delegaton in southwestern Virginia, and the ofce 
staf has been to various meetngs as well.

3)  The legislatve ofcials have told us the state is set to make massive cuts.

4)  The Virginia Department of Health has turned down all grant applicatons from the town due
to the ongoing federal investgaton.  Their leter is in the packets.

5)  The Town Crew is repairing potholes and working on the cracks in the sidewalks.

6)  We are working with VDOT to get a guardrail on Highway 91 where the playground is.  VDOT
would also like to know if the Council is in support of their endeavor near the ball felds.  
Councilman Brickey asked if they wanted the town to give them that road and Mr. Taylor said 
no.  They just want the Council to say they agree with the project in general.  Councilman Orr 
made a moton to that efect and Councilman Call seconded.  The moton carried 5-1 with 
Councilman Hunt votng no.

6



7)  The cleanup of the propertes in town is ongoing, but it is a slow process.

8)  Mr. Taylor says he gets calls all the tme about raising water rates and taxes when the town 
could spend the funds that Olin stll sends.  He put in the packets a copy of the check that Olin 
recently sent the town for their taxes, and the amount was only $636.97.  They are not sending 
in millions of tax dollars to the town to which Councilman Brickey replied that millions had been
given over the years, but it had been wasted.  

9)  There has been a special electon called to fll the seat vacated when Vince Maiden resigned,
and it will be on February 10, 2015.  Anyone wantng to run has to fle by Friday, December 12th 
at 5:00 p.m.  It was discussed pushing this of untl May of next year, but the State Board of 
Electons (SBE) approved the special electon.  Councilman Brickey asked if there would be a 
cost for this electon, and Mr. Taylor said it had not been mentoned yet.  Councilman Brickey 
then asked if the town would have to pay for it and whether the town had to have it.  Mr. Crewe
said the town would have to pay for it and that date was chosen since there are other electons 
that day in the state and the SBE picked that date since Mr. Maiden’s resignaton came four 
days afer the deadline for this seat to be put on the ballot at the electons held in November.  
Councilman Brickey asked if the town could change the date, and Mr. Crewe said no since the 
SBE had ofcially entered that date.

10) The Princeton (West Virginia) Veterans Center was contacted to help the town’s veterans fll
out various forms, inform them of benefcial programs, etc.  Representatves from Princeton will
be here twice a month to ofer their support and services.

11) Councilman Smith said the town’s employees used to get Christmas bonuses but haven’t 
the last couple of years.  He made a moton to have Mr. Taylor and Mr. Johnson research to see 
if the bonuses could be given this year too.  Councilman Brickey seconded the moton by saying 
he thought the employees deserved a bonus.  All were in favor.  

Police Chief’s Report

Actng Chief Pucket spoke on the following:

1)  He thanked everyone who partcipated in or helped with the Christmas parade.

2)  The department is hoping to have two Auxiliary Ofcers (Rocky Casey and Hiram Robinson) 
back soon since the Commonwealth Atorney has approved the paperwork.  They will wear the 
same uniforms and will be used within the powers of the Auxiliary but will have other dutes 
too.  They will not be independent but can ride with the town’s ofcers and can use a car if the 
need arises.  

7



Councilman Brickey said it was his opinion that the Police/Fire/Rescue Commitee needs to be 
more involved with the department.  He suggested that Actng Chief Pucket needed to meet 
with the commitee when he wanted to in order to discuss various issues in the department or 
provide updates.  He then made a moton for the Actng Chief, and the Mayor if he desired, to 
meet with the commitee sometme in the upcoming month.  The Mayor said he would not 
mind to do that but thought that Councilman Orr, the Chair of that commitee, should be the 
one to call the meetng.  

Councilman Brickey asked Mr. Crewe if he rewrote the Town Code on how the commitees were
selected and Mr. Crewe said the Council voted on how they select the commitees.  Councilman
Brickey said that under a porton of the Town Code, unless it was changed, that the commitee 
could meet and act on assignments given to them by the Council and that is what Councilman 
Brickey said he is doing.  Councilman Orr then asked Councilman Brickey why he was shirking 
his duty by not wantng to vote on the new Chief.  Councilman Brickey said he thought the 
commitee should have a say to which Councilman Orr asked why this body was elected if it 
wasn’t going to be the one who stood up and makes the call.  Mr. Crewe said that technically 
the Town Manager was the one who hired and fred through the instructon and guidance of 
the Council.  This is stated in the charter in that Saltville has the Town Council form of 
government.  The commitees are assigned based on the members’ areas of expertse but He 
did not think the commitees had any say over the selecton of an employee for the town.  
Councilman Brickey said his moton stood as it was and Councilman Call seconded.  Mr. Crewe 
said that if the moton is that the commitee be involved in the hiring, he thought that would be
an illegal act because they are not subject to being controlled by Council and the Council could 
not delegate power to them.  The Mayor asked if this could be voted upon then, and Mr. Crewe 
said that he thought if the commitee was involved, the Council would be actng out of the 
provisions of the law.  Councilman Brickey reiterated he made a moton and received a second 
and it needed to be voted upon.  Mr. Crewe said the Mayor could rule this out of order if he 
thought it was appropriate, so the Mayor went on to the next topic on the agenda.

Fire Department Report

Assistant Chief Bobby Dye spoke on the following:

1)  The training will start in January.

2)  Councilman Orr was given some informaton about funding.

3)  One of the trucks is currently at Peterbilt with a transmission problem.

4)  With regard to the department getng back its incorporaton, Mr. Taylor said the members 
will have to go through the guideline process and maybe meet with the Police/Fire/Rescue 

8



Commitee and bring any fndings back to the Council regarding incorporaton.  Councilman Orr 
said the commitee had already recommended gaining back the incorporaton.  Mr. Dye said 
this should help with obtaining grants.

5)  The subject of funding for the training classes will brought back to the Council at next 
month’s meetng.  

6)  Councilman Brickey asked how many calls were run the past month and was told 
approximately ffeen.  He then asked if they had a statement showing the amount of fuel 
consumpton, and Mr. Dye said they had just started using the new fuel cards and had just 
received the frst bill and he thought it was about $171.00.  Only two people can actually get gas
since it requires a specifc identfcaton number.  

7)  Councilman Brickey then inquired about the sof billing.  Mr. Dye said that Chief Davidson 
had this informaton but could not atend this meetng.  

Rescue Squad Report

Bill Garrison discussed the following:

1)   His number one goal is to stop some of the negatve talk in the community.  He hears people
say the Squad doesn’t have enough qualifed members, but that isn’t true.  The unit has been 
here over ffy years, and the bashing has risen.  Training goes on constantly.

2)  The Squad is looking to put a paramedic on duty twenty-four hours a days, but that will cost 
approximately $124,000.

3)  There have been over 850 calls this year.

4)  Membership increases about 2.5% each month, but it sometmes takes six months for the 
training.

5)  The Squad wrote of $70,000 worth of calls last quarter due to the costs being uncollectble.  

6)  Currently, the breakdown of the members is as follows:  twenty senior members, sixteen 
auxiliary members, and fve junior members.

7)  Five members are certfed as EVOC drivers, three members are testng for the EMT shortly, 
and three members were trained from the Homeland Security In-Crisis Management for School
Based Incidents program.

9



8)  Total mileage for the year for all calls was 41,000.

9)  The cost estmate to fx the 107 radio tower where it was hit by lightning is $10,000 and that 
money will be hard to procure.

10) He reiterated that the negatve talk is really hurtng the morale of the Squad.

11) Councilman Brickey asked if the repairs needed on the building near the tower that Mr. 
Garrison referenced a couple of meetngs ago had been fxed, and he replied no.  There has 
been no response from the town yet since the Mayor had asked for an estmate frst.

12) The Christmas banquet will be on December 13th at 7:00 p.m. at the high school.

Council Comments

Councilman Hunt thanked the town crew and the emergency units for their ongoing work, and 
he asked everyone to pray for the town in the upcoming year and wished all a Merry Christmas 
and Happy New Year.  Councilwoman Wyat wished everyone a Merry Christmas and Happy 
New Year.  Councilman Call thanked Actng Chief Pucket for his good work and told him to keep
it up.

Councilman Smith thanked the police, the town crew, the rescue squad, and the fre 
department for their help in the community since we could not survive without them.  
Councilman Brickey made a moton to add a discussion of the bills in the packets to the agenda 
and Councilman Call seconded.  All were in favor.  Councilman Brickey said that former 
employee Anita Miller’s name was listed on three diferent bills from Hungate and asked why 
that was the case.  The Mayor said they were probably referencing her and Ms. Carter said 
there are things that stll have Amy McVey’s name on them.  Councilman Brickey then asked 
why bills are being paid that are being billed to Ms. Miller.  Mr. Johnson said they weren’t billed 
to Ms. Miller, per se.  The Mayor said that was the contact name at one tme, and 
Councilwoman Wyat said that could be a Hungate oversight.  Councilman Brickey said he 
thought that should be changed since she is no longer here, and Mr. Johnson said that would be
no problem.

Councilman Brickey then thanked the police for their contnuing good work and said the new 
ofcer hired would be a good asset to the town and a good employee, but he had an issue with 
the way she was hired; it should have been done diferently.  He also thanked the fre 
department and rescue squad for the work in the community.  Councilman Orr thanked all of 
the town’s employees and the fre department.

10



The Mayor said the town had a good Christmas parade, even though he ran short of candy.  He 
thanked Delegate Jef Campbell, Delegate Israel O’Quinn, Mayor Helms from Marion, police 
units from both Washington and Smyth Countes and the towns of Marion and Chilhowie, the 
Saltville Fire Department, and the Saltville Rescue Squad and Saltville Fire Department.  The 
Mayor then thanked Mr. Henderson, Mr. Taylor, and Mr. Johnson since at some meetngs they 
have things thrown their way that should not be thrown.  The Council could do litle things 
beforehand to speed up the meetngs.

Lastly, Councilman Brickey made the moton to adjourn and Councilman Smith seconded.  All 
were in favor.

11


